




From: Susan Thomas
To: Celia Ruiz
Subject: Re: Vacation Time Off
Date: Wednesday, December 12, 2018 3:58:20 PM

I spoke with Casey and he informed me that the membership was happy with it. So it sounds
like a go!

Merry Christmas!

Susan Thomas
Local 620

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone

On Wednesday, December 12, 2018, 3:54 PM, Celia Ruiz <celia@oceanocsd.org> wrote:

From: Celia Ruiz <celia@oceanocsd.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, December 11, 2018 12:31 PM
To: 'susan@seiulocal620.org' <susan@seiulocal620.org> 
Subject: Vacation Time Off

 Susan,

            I am write to inform you that Union members would like to take 12/24 and
12/31 as 4 hrs. off vacation. I will also like to take it off as vacation.

            We just need a response back that you guys are ok with that to submit to
the Board for approval.

 Thank you

mailto:sthomas1277@yahoo.com
mailto:celia@oceanocsd.org
https://overview.mail.yahoo.com/?.src=iOS


Celia Ruiz

Account Administrator III

Oceano Community Services District 

1655 Front St., PO Box 599

Oceano, CA.  93475

Office (805) 481-6730

Fax (805) 481-6836

http://oceanocsd.org/main/

tel:(805)%20481-6730
tel:(805)%20481-6836
http://oceanocsd.org/main/














Understanding the 
Ralph M. Brown Act



Disclaimer

The following information is designed to 
be a general guide to the Brown Act and 
should not be considered legal advice. 

For questions about specific situations 
concerning the Brown Act please consult  
District Counsel. 



Purpose of the Brown Act

• To guarantee the public’s right to attend 
and participate in meetings of local 
legislative bodies.



Open and Public

Ralph M. Brown 1959 
Photo courtesy The Modesto Bee

“ The people, in 
delegating authority, do 
not give their public 
servants the right to 
decide what is good for 
the people to know and 
what is not good for them 
to know.” 
-California Government 
Code §54950



PRESENTATION OVERVIEW
I. BODIES COVERED

II. MEETINGS

III. AGENDA REQUIREMENTS

IV. PUBLIC ACCESS TO MEETINGS

V. CLOSED SESSIONS

VI. LEGAL CHALLENGES



I.  BODIES COVERED
Local Agencies

• All meetings of the legislative body of a 
local agency must be open and public.  
§§54951-54952

-- Special Districts are “local agencies”



Regulated Legislative Bodies

• What is a “legislative body”?

- The District Board;

- District commissions and committees, whether 
permanent or temporary, decision-making or 
advisory, created by a formal act (with 
some exceptions); and

- Newly elected or appointed members of a 
covered body, prior to being sworn into office.



Ad-Hoc Advisory Committee Exception

• The Brown Act does not apply to:

-- Ad-hoc advisory committees composed solely of 
less than a quorum of the board members unless:

• It is a standing committee that has 
continuing subject matter jurisdiction; or

• It has a meeting schedule fixed by formal 
action of the board.



II. MEETINGS

• A “meeting” includes any gathering of a 
majority of the members of a legislative 
body at the same time and location to 
hear, discuss, deliberate or take 
action upon any item which is within its 
subject matter jurisdiction.



Types of Meetings

• Formal Meetings
- Regular meetings
- Special meetings
- Emergency meetings
- Teleconference meetings

• Informal Meetings
- Daisy Chain
- Hub and Spoke
- Email/Technology



Regular Meetings

• Regular meetings of the legislative body, 
excluding advisory committees and 
standing committees, must be held at the 
time and place set by ordinance, 
resolution or bylaws.

§ 54954(a)



Special Meetings
• The presiding officer or a majority of the legislative body 

may call a special meeting at any time.

• Written notice must be delivered at least 24 hours before 
the time of the meeting to each legislative body member 
(unless waived in writing), to each local newspaper of 
general circulation, radio and TV station which has 
requested such notice in writing, and posted on the 
agency’s website.

• Only the business set forth in the notice may be 
considered in the meeting.  

§ 54956



Emergency Meetings

The legislative body determines a work stoppage, crippling 
disaster, or other activity severely impairs public health or 
safety.

The legislative body determines that a “dire” emergency 
exists, such as mass destruction, terrorist act or threat that 
poses immediate and significant peril.

The special meeting provisions apply to emergency 
meetings, except one-hour telephone notice may be 
provided.

§ 54956.5 (a) and (d)



Teleconference
• Meetings may be conducted by teleconferencing 

(i.e., any electronic audio or video connection) 
under the following conditions:

• Agendas must be posted at video teleconferencing locations 
specifying all teleconference locations;

• There is public access to teleconference locations;

• There is public opportunity to speak at each teleconference 
location; and

• All votes are taken by roll call.



Off-Site Meetings
A meeting may be held off-site in 
limited circumstances, such as:

• Inspect real or personal property 
that cannot be conveniently 
brought to the agency.

• Participate in a multi-agency 
meeting (if that meeting takes 
place within the jurisdiction of one 
of the members of the multi-
agency).

• In an emergency, for reasons of 
safety.

§ 54954 (b) and (e)



Serial Meetings

• Daisy Chain:  If Member A contacts Member B, 
and Member B contacts Member C, and so on, 
until a quorum has been involved, this type of 
“serial meeting” may result in a violation of the 
Brown Act.



Serial Meeting

• Hub and Spoke:  An intermediary – such as a 
staff member – contacts at least a quorum of 
the members to develop a collective concurrence 
on action to be taken by the legislative body.



Concerns with Email
• Avoid sending emails to the whole board.

- If necessary, provide information only.
- Do not solicit a response.

• Be careful replying to emails.
- Do not communicate your position or make a commitment on
a pending matter.

- Do not direct a reply to a majority of the board.

• Think carefully before sending any email.
- Remember, your email can be forwarded by others to 
a majority of the board.



Not a Meeting
• An employee or official of a local 

agency may engage in “separate 
conversations or 
communications” outside of a 
meeting in order to “answer 
questions or provide 
information” so long as that 
person “does not communicate 
to members of the legislative 
body the comments or 
positions of any other 
member or members.”

§ 54952.2(b)(2)



Not a Meeting
• Attendance by a majority of members at:

-A conference that is related to the business of the 
agency that is open to the public.

Provided that a majority of the members do not discuss 
amongst themselves business of a “specific nature” that 
is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the agency.

§54952.2(c)(2)



Not a Meeting
• Attendance by a majority of members at:

- An open and publicized meeting organized to address
a topic of local community concern by a person or 
organization other than the local agency.

Providing that a majority of the members do not discuss 
amongst themselves business “of a specific nature” that is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the agency.  

§54952.2(c)(3)



Not a Meeting
• Attendance by a majority of members at:

- A purely social or ceremonial occasion.

Providing that a majority of the members do not discuss 
amongst themselves business “of a specific nature” that is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the agency.  

§54952.2(c)(5)



III.  AGENDA REQUIREMENTS

• Agenda Posting Requirements
• Agenda Description
• Public Comment
• Non-Agendized Items
• Adding Items to an Agenda



Agenda Posting Requirements
• A written agenda must be prepared for each regular or adjourned 

regular meeting of each legislative body.

• The agenda for a regular meeting must be posted at least 72 
hours before the meeting.

• As of January 1, 2012, notice of all meeting, including special 
meetings, must be posted on the local agency’s website, if the 
agency has a website.



Agenda Description
• Each item of business to 

be “transacted or 
discussed,” including 
items to be discussed in 
closed session, must be 
the subject of a “brief 
general description” 
which generally need not 
exceed 20 words. 

§ 54954.2(a)(1)



Public Comment

• Agenda must 
include a time for 
public comment 
before or during 
the consideration 
of an agendized 
item.



Non-Agendized Items
• Action or discussion of any item not appearing on the posted agenda is 

generally prohibited.

• Members may only:
- Briefly respond to public statements or questions;
- Ask a question for clarification;
- Make a brief announcement;
- Make a brief report on his or her activities;
- Provide a reference to staff or other sources for factual information; or
- Request staff to report back to the legislative body in a subsequent 
meeting.

• The legislative body may direct staff to place the matter on a future 
agenda.

§54954.2(a)(3)



Adding Items to an Agenda
• A legislative body may take action on items of business not appearing 

on the agenda:

- When a majority decides that an emergency situation exists (i.e., 
work stoppage, crippling disaster, etc.).

- When two-thirds present (or all members if less than two-thirds are 
present) determine there is a subsequent need to take 
immediate action and that the need for action “came to the 
attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being 
posted.”

- When the item appeared on the agenda of, and was continued 
from, a meeting held not more than five days earlier.

§54954.2(b)



IV. Public Access to Meetings

• Physical Accessibility
• Meeting Documents
• Right to Record
• Public Participation
• Limits on Public Participation



Accessibility
• Members of the public cannot be required to register 

their names, provide other information, complete a 
questionnaire, or otherwise “fulfill any condition 
precedent” to attending a meeting.

§ 54953.3

• No meeting or any other function can be held in a facility 
that prohibits attendance based on race, religious creed, 
color, national origin, ancestry or sex, or which is 
inaccessible to the disabled.

§ 54961(a)



Accessibility
• Meetings must be held in facilities 

accessible to disabled persons.
§ 54961(a)

• Agendas must include information 
regarding contact information for 
requests for disability-related 
accommodations.

§ 54954.2(a)(1)

• Agendas and other documents 
must be made available in 
“appropriate alternative formats” 
when requested.

§ 54954.2(a)(1)



Meeting Documents
• The public has the right to review agendas and other writings 

distributed to a majority of the legislative body (except for 
privileged documents).  A fee or deposit may be charged for a copy 
of a public record.

§ 54957.5 (a) and (d)

• Writings must be made public:
- at the time distributed to a majority of the legislative body 
(before or at a meeting) if prepared by the agency or a 
member of its legislative body, or

- after the meeting if prepared by some other person.
§ 54957.5(b) and (c)



Right to Record
• The public is allowed to use 

audio or video tape recorders 
or still or motion picture 
cameras at an open meeting, 
absent a reasonable finding by 
the legislative body that such 
recording, if continued, would 
persistently disrupt the 
proceedings due to noise, 
illumination, or obstruction of 
view.

§ 54953.5(a)



Public Participation
• A regular meeting agenda 

must allow an opportunity for 
members of the public to 
speak on any item of 
interest so long as the item is 
within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative 
body.

• The public must be allowed to 
speak on a specific item of 
business before or during
the legislative body’s 
consideration of it.



Limits on Public Participation

• The legislative body may adopt reasonable 
regulations, including time limits, on public 
comments (e.g., three minutes).



Limits on Public Participation
• The legislative body may 

remove persons from a 
meeting who willfully interrupt 
proceedings.  If order still 
cannot be restored, the 
meeting room may be cleared.

• Members of the news media 
who have not participated in 
the disturbance must be 
allowed to continue to attend 
the meeting.

§54957.9



V. CLOSED SESSION
• Closed sessions are an exception to the rule that agency 

meetings must be open and public.

• Only topics authorized under the Brown Act may be 
discussed in closed session.

• The most common closed session topics are:
1. Personnel Matters
2. Litigation
3. Real Estate Negotiations
4. Labor Negotiations



Adjournment to Closed Session

• Prior to holding any closed session, the 
legislative body must disclose, in an open 
meeting, the item or items to be discussed 
in the closed session.

• The public has the right to address the 
legislative body on closed session items 
before it adjourns into closed session.

§ 54956.9(g)



Reporting Out From Closed Session

• A legislative body must reconvene in open 
session to report on any “final” action taken in 
closed session.

• Oftentimes, the action taken is not “final” 
because another party must approve or ratify 
the agreement.

• Once final approval occurs, related documents 
must be disclosed upon request.

§ 54957.1



VI. LEGAL CHALLENGES



Civil Actions
• The district attorney or any interested person can file a 

civil action asking a court to:
- Stop or prevent violations or threatened violations of 

the Brown Act by members of a legislative body.
- Determine the applicability of the Brown Act to past 

actions or threatened future actions of a legislative 
body.

- Void certain past actions found to be in violation of 
the Brown Act.

§§ 54960, 54960.1, 54960.2



Opportunity to Cure
• Before filing a court action to void certain past actions, the 

aggrieved party must send a written “cure or correct” demand to 
the legislative body.

• The demand must clearly describe the challenged action, the nature 
of the alleged violation, and the “cure” sought and it must be sent 
within 90 days of the alleged violation (or 30 days if the action was 
taken in open session but in violation of Section 54952.2 which 
defines “meetings.”)

• The legislative body then has up to 30 days to cure or correct its 
action.  If it does not act, any lawsuit must be filed within the next 
15 days.

§ 54960.1



Cease & Desist Commitment
• Before filing a court action to declare certain past actions in violation of the 

Brown Act, the aggrieved party must submit a written “cease and desist” 
letter to the legislative body.

• The letter must clearly describe the nature of the alleged violation, and 
must be sent within 9 months of the alleged violation.

• The legislative body then has up to 30 days to issue an “unconditional 
commitment” to cease and desist from the past action.

• If the body fails to respond or issue the commitment, then the individual 
then has 60 days from the date of the response or the expiration of the 
response period to file a lawsuit.

• A legislative body may rescind a cease and desist commitment at an open, 
regular meeting upon 30 days notice to the aggrieved party.

• Upon such notice, the aggrieved party may commence an action under §
54960 to prevent such threatened action.

§ 54960.2



Costs and Attorney Fees
• If the court finds the legislative body violated the Brown 

Act, the plaintiffs may get costs and attorneys’ fees.

• A public entity may get costs and attorneys’ fees if it 
wins only if the lawsuit was “clearly frivolous and totally 
lacking in merit.”



THE BEST SOLUTION 
IS PREVENTION
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